Corporation of the Township of Chisholm
Municipal Office: 2847 Chiswick Line
Powassan, ON POH 1Z0
Telephone (705)724-3526 - Fax (705) 724-5099
info@chisholm.ca

Gail Degagne, Mayor
Jennistine Leblond, CAO Clerk-Treasurer

AGENDA

GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE MEETING

Wednesday July 20, 2022— 6:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER

DECLARATION OF PECINIARY INTEREST

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

APPROVAL OF MINUTES — June 15, 2022

BUSINESS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MINUTES

1. Short Term Rentals draft by-law (Encl.)

Planning Fees (deferred — 5 year plan for all fees and lakeshore/road allowance split out)
Building By-law - (deferred)

Fireworks By-law (deferred)

Regulate and License Festivals (deferred)

bW

OPEN FORUM

NEW BUSINESS

1. Discussion — Official plan amendment — Lot creation in Rural Zone (Encl.)
2. Discussion - Staff Appreciation — Years of Service Awards

ADJOURNMENT




DATE:
TIME:

LOCATION:

PRESENT:

REGRETS:

GUESTS:

TOWNSHIP OF CHISHOLM

GENERAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE MEETING

June 15, 2022
6:00 PM
Council Chambers

Mayor Gail Degagne

Councillor Nunzio Scarfone
Councillor Bernadette Kerr
Councillor James Gauthier

Councillor David Coombs (at 6:15pm)
CAO Clerk-Treasurer Jenny Leblond

Eric Prevost, Anna Wright, Kathy James and Denise Howe

1. CALL TO ORDER

Chairperson Gail Degagne called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm

2. DECLARATION OF PECUNIARY INTEREST — None noted.

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Resolution 2022-19 (GGC)

Nunzio Scarfone and Bernadette Kerr: Be it resolved that the Agenda for this meeting be
approved as presented. ‘Carried’

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Resolution 2022-20 (GGC)

Nunzio Scarfone and Bernadette Kerr: Be it resolved that the Minutes of the February 16,
2022 General Government Committee meeting be adopted as printed and circulated.

‘Carried’



5. BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES

1. Resolution 2022-21 (GGC)
Bernadette Kerr and James Gauthier: Be it resolved that the General Government
Committee agree with CAO that the topic of Backyard Chickens be moved to the Zoning
By-law Review.

‘Carried’

2. Planning Fees (deferred)
3. Building By-law (deferred)

7. NEW BUSINESS

1. Resolution 2022-22 (GGC)
James Gauthier and Nunzio Scarfone: Be it resolved that the General Government
Committee accept memo from CAO with regards to short term rentals;
And further direct CAO to create a draft by-law regulating short term rentals within the
township.

‘Carried’

2. Resolution 2022-23 (GGC)
David Coombs and Nunzio Scarfone: Be it resolved that the General Government
Committee recommends to Council to approve the Heat Stress Policy.

‘Carried’

8. OPEN FORUM Comments on Short Term Rentals -
a. Education for owners/renters on septic do’s and don’ts, phosphate free soaps, other
bylaws in place that pertain, such as fireworks, burning and noise.
No tents or trailers allowed for additional people ’
Make sure there is a plan for garbage and recycling
Making sure there is enough parking on the property
Should someone be within 30 minutes away to respond to issues
Impact on private roads

o oo o

9. ADJOURNMENT

Resolution 2022-24 (GGC)
James Gauthier and Nunzio Scarfone: Be it resolved that we do now adjourn to meet again
at the call of the Chair. ‘Carried’

Chairperson CAO Clerk-Treasurer



DRAFT# 1 — July 14, 2022

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHISHOLM
BY-LAW NO. 2022-XX

BEING A BY-LAW TO LICENSE AND REGULATE THE USE OF SHORT TERM
RENTALS IN THE TOWNSHIP OF CHISHOLM

WHEREAS the Council of the Township of Chisholm may, pursuant to the Municipal Act,
2001, 8.0. 2001, c.25. as amended, (“The Municipal Act”), enact by-laws for the licensing,
regulating and governing of businesses and occupations in the Township of Chisholm;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to Section 10 of the Municipal Act, a municipality has the
authority to implement business licensing in the interest of health and safety, well-being of
persons, consumer protection and nuisance control;

AND WHEREAS Sections 390 to 400 of the Municipal A néjables a municipality to pass
By-laws for imposing fees or charges to permits and s‘en}ioes provided or done by them;

AND WHEREAS pursuant to Section 434.1 of the Mun|0|pa Act, a municipality has the
authority to impose a system of administrative penaltles and fees as an additional means of
encouraging compliance with this by- Iaw i 1L

AND WHEREAS Section 436 of the Municipal Act permits.a munlcrpahty -to pass by-laws
providing that the municipality may enter on land at any reasonable time for the purpose of
carrying out an inspection to determme comphance W|th a/by -law direction, order orlicense;

AND WHEREAS Section 444 of the Munrmpal Act provrdes that if a municipality is satisfied
that a contravention of a by-law of the munncrpahty passed under this Act has occurred, the
municipality may make an order requiring the person who contravened the by-law or who

e contravention or the owner or occupier of the land on which the
contravention occurred to dlscontmue the contravemng actlvrty,

AND WHEREAS pursuant to Sectlon 151 of the Mumcrpal Act, Council is exercising its
authority to provide for.a system of hcensmg with respect to Short Term Rental
Accommodatlon busmesse e :

AND WHEREAS Short Term Rentals are not a permltted use in any zone of the current
town’Ship Zomng Bylaw' (By -Law 2014 25)

AND WHEREAS the Councrl of the Corporatron of the Township of Chisholm deems it
desirable to allow for Short Term Rentals in all zones and that licensing and regulation takes
place with regard. to Short Term Rental Accommodations as defined in this By-law;

NOW THEREFORE the Councnl of the Corporation of the Township of Chisholm enacts as
follows:

1.0 Definitions
For the purpose of this by-law:

Accessory Building or Structure shall mean a detached building or structure, the
use of which is naturally and normally incidental to, subordinate to, or exclusively
devoted to, the principal use or main building on the same lot.

Fee shall mean a Fee as set forth in this by-law and is non-refundable.
License shall mean the License issued under this by-law.

Licensee shall mean a person who holds a License or is required to hold a License
under this by-law.

Municipality shall mean the Township of Chisholm.
1



Officer shall mean any person appointed by the Township of Chisholm to carry out by-
law enforcement work or any other person legally permitted to enforce by-laws such as a
police officer.

Short Term Rental shall mean the use of a single detached dwelling or part of a single
detached dwelling that operates or offers a place of temporary residence, lodging, or
occupancy by way of concession, permit, lease, license, rental agreement, or similar
arrangement for overnight stay for a period of not more than 28 days in exchange for
payment or service. Bed and breakfast establishments, campgrounds, group homes,
hotels, nursing homes, retirement homes, and tourist establishments, all as defined in
the Township of Chisholm Zoning By-Law, shall not be considered Short Term Rentals.

Single Detached Dwelling shall mean a building comprised of one dwelling unit.

Recreational Trailer or Vehicle shall mean any vehicle that is suitable for being
attached to a motor vehicle for the purpose of being drawn or.is self-propelled, and is
capable of being used on a short term recreational basis for. living, sleeping or eating
accommodation of human beings and includes a travel trarler pick-up camper, motorized
camper or tent trailer. o on

Zoning By-law shall mean Township of Chlsholm Zonmg By Iaw 2014-25, the
Comprehensive Zoning By-law for the Townshrp of Chisholm, or |ts successor.

2.0 Administration ,

2.1 This by-law shall be admmrstered by the Mumclpahty

2.2 Officers shall be responsmle for the enforcement of thrs by-law.

2.3 Upon receipt of an applrcatlon for Llcense the MunICIpalrty shall review the
application in the context of this by-law and either issue a License or provide a
written explanatlon of why the application fails to meet the criteria for a License.
This shall be. completed within 15 business days. The Deputy Clerk or designate
for the Munlcrpahty is provided the authonty by the Municipality to issue a license

v under thls by Iaw * .

{”f"The Munrcrpahty shall keep a publrc record of issued Licenses on the

Short Term Rental has been Llcensed

25 The Llcensee is responsrble for all fees and fines related to the operation of a
Short Term Rental inder this by-law.

2.6 Licenses must bearenewed annually.

2.7 A License issued under this by-law is not transferrable and shall not be used by
any person other than the person who was issued the License. A new owner or
operator of a property is required to obtain their own License.

2.8 No License shall be issued without receipt of the licensing fee as shown on
Schedule A to this by-law.

2.9 Fines shall be issued by Officers for contraventions of this by-law in accordance
with Schedule B of this by-law.

2.10 A fine shall be considered a strike against the Licensee for the purpose of this by-
law. Receiving 2 strikes within the term of the License shall result in the License
being revoked for the remainder of the calendar year and shall prevent a License
being issued for the property for the following calendar year, regardless of a
change in applicants. No refund of license fees.

2.11 Only one License may be active for any property at any given time.

2



3.0

31

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

4.0

4.1

42
© Term Renta[

43

4.5

4.6

47

4.8

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

Prohibitions

No person shall use or operate any Short-Term Rental unless they hold a current
license issued pursuant to this By-law.

No person shall permit more than 2 persons per bedroom to occupy the Short
Term Rental. A pull-out couch, or similar sleeping arrangement, can provide for a
maximum of 2 additional guests beyond what the number of bedrooms would
allow. Only 2 additional guests per Short Term Rental are permitted regardiess of
the number of pull-out couches or other sleeping arrangements present on site.
This must be outlined in the application for License.

No licensee shall rent any Short-Term Rental with accommodations other than
related to the bedrooms outlined in the application as per section 3.4 of this by-
law.

The provisions of this by-law shall not apply when the property is being used for
personal use by the owner.

No person shall contravene any mumcrpal by-Iaw whrle occupylng a Short Term
Rental. .

No person shall advertise a Short Term Rental on a website o"m any place that
is not listed on their application. : :

No person shall operate a Short Term Rental : a:chense that has been

revoked by the Mumcrpaftty

License and Termv

The Llcense shaII be valrd for up to a maxrmum of 1 calendar year but shall
expire on December 31St of any grven year regardless of how long the license
has been actlve .

The Llcense shall exprre upon the sale of a property that is being used as a Short

A License shall‘ noftfbe trane;ferred or aesigned to any other party and is only valid
for the person who was issu\et@;lthe License.

No Llcense shall be rssued for any property that has outstanding fines, penalties,
judgements, or any other amounts owing against the property under this or any
other by-law."

No License shall be issued for any property that has outstanding taxes owing to
the municipality.

A License shall not be granted to a corporation and an application shall not be
made by a corporation.

The Municipality may revoke a license if it was issued in error or granted based
on incorrect or false information.
General Provisions

No person shall permit a Recreational Trailer or Vehicle to be located on a
property used as a Short Term Rental.

No person shall have more than one Short Term Rental on any one property.

No person shall use an accessory building or structure as a Short Term Rental.

3



54

55

5.6

57

5.8

5.9

6.0

6.1

6.2

7.0

7.1

Short Term Rentals are only permitted within single detached dwellings.

Provisions for garbage and recycling collection shall be established which include
instructions for the renters.

Parking shall be provided at a rate of 1 space per bedroom, with one additional
space being required if additional guests are permitted as per section 3.4 of this
by-law. Parking spaces must meet the size requirements of the zoning by-law. Al
parking must be provided on the property.

Tents are permitted on the site of a Short Term Rental; however, no person shall
use tents to increase the maximum permitted number of occupants of the Short
Term Rental as defined by Section 3.4 of this by-law.

No person shall permit an event at the location of a Short Term Rental which
exceeds the capacity limits. Events are permitted at the location of a Short Term
Rental with a maximum capacity of twice the number :of permitted occupants
stipulated in Section 3.4. The maximum occupancy for overnight accommodation
does not change as a result of this provusuon For greater clarity, if 10 persons are
permitted based on occupancy then the maximum guests at an event would be
20 persons inclusive of the initial 10 permltted: ‘

Renters shall be made aware of property boundanes and the outdoor spaces and
amenities they have access to as pa of the rental.

Inspection

Short Term Rental Propertles W|th a septic system.within the Callander Bay Issue
Contributing Area (ICA) will be: subject to the Man ;etory Maintenance Inspection
(MMI) program. conducted by the North Bay Mattawa servatlon Authority
every 5 years g A \

Short Term Rentals that are WIthln 300 metres of WaS| Lake must abide by By-
Law 2010-34.“4 By—law‘to regulate the pump-out of septic tanks on properties

l‘oca,ted‘ w;thzn 30() metres of Wasi Lake”

Appllcatlon Reqwrements

‘A completed appllcatlon form as provided by the municipality, is required prior to

the issuance of a License under this By-law. The application requirements
include, but are not hmlted to:

7.1.1 Proof of ow ershlp of the property

712 Contact information for a person who can be a public contact on behalf of
the Short Term Rental and who can be readily contacted within thirty (30)
minutes and respond to an emergency or contravention of any municipal
by-law including attendance on site of the Short Term Rental dwelling
within one (1) hour of being notified of the occurrence. This contact
information shall be posted publicly on the municipality’s website. The
contact information shall come in the form of both an email and phone

number along with the contact person’s name.

7.1.3 Proof of insurance with a minimum of $2 million liability coverage.

7.1.4 A site plan showing the locations of all buildings and structures on site
including the parking layout.

7.1.5 A floor plan of the Short Term Rental showing all bedrooms and sleeping
accommodations and indicating the maximum capacity based on the
provisions of this by-law.

7.1.6 Alisting of all websites or any other places that the Short Term Rental will

4



8.0

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.0

9.1

be listed for rent.

7.1.7 A plan of how the Licensee plans to make renters aware of local by-laws
and their obligations under this by-law.

7.1.9 A waste collection plan. The Licensee must detail how they will ensure
that garbage and recycling is being managed.

7.1.10 Renters shall be provided with a copy of the Municipality’s Noise By-Law,
Open Air Burning By-Law, and Fireworks.

Fines

Every Person who contravenes any provision of this by-law is guilty of an offence
and upon conviction is liable to a fine pursuant to the provisions of the Provincial
Offences Act R.S.0. 1890, Chapter P.33, as amended

Every person who contravenes any provision of thrs by -law is guilty of an offence
and on conviction liable to a fine not exceedmg $25 OOO for a first offence and
$50,000 for any subsequent offence. :

In addition to any other penalty presc d by thrs by- laW" ény person who

fine or penalty for each offence establlshed pursuant to the Provmcral Offences
Act and is set out on Schedule “‘B” formlng an mtegral part of this by—law

Each day a contraventlon occurs constrtutes a new offence.

éi;;,bt;“if?tahy;p:art of a fine for a

‘@]was rmposed a wrrtten notrce specrfymg the amount of the fine payable and the

-'f’ff‘»“fnal date on which it is’ payable which shall be not less than 21 days after the

10.0

10.1

11.0

If the fine remains unpaid after the final date specified in the

"notrce the fine is deemed to be unpaid taxes pursuant to Section 351 of the

manner as Property taxes

Severability

If any provision ofthis By-law is for any reason held to be invalid by a decision of
a court, all remaining provisions shall be valid and shall remain in full force and
effect.

Transitional Clause

Notwithstanding the illegal status of existing Short Term Rentals and recognizing
that Short Term Rentals have never been permitted under Zoning By-Law 2014-
25, except in specific accordance with this by-law, the municipality is enacting a
transitional clause as follows:

11.1.1 There shall be a three month period from the date of the passing of this
by-law in which applications will be accepted to determine the eligibility of
existing properties for a Short Term Rental License.

11.1.2 After the expiration of the three month period following the passing of this
by-law, any properties not issued a License under this by-law may be
subject to ongoing fines as per Schedule B of this by-law.

5



11.1.3 This section of the by-law shall not imply any change in the legal status of
existing Short Term Rentals during the transitional period.

12.0 Schedules

12.1  Schedules “A”, “B” and “C” as attached form part of this by-law.

13.0 Appeal

13.1 A Licensee may request a review by the Municipality’s Chief Administrative
Officer (CAO) of a decision to revoke or fail to renew a license by requesting a
review in writing within fourteen (14) days of having:received the notice of refusal,
suspensmn or revocatlon The reVIew will be completed by the CAO within ten

14.0 Date of Effect

14.1  This by-law shall come into effect on ; ‘éfdéte that it recke'i“‘\

33rcl reading by the
Council for the Corporation of the To _,nshlp of Chisholm

_ day of September, 2022.

READ A FIRST AND SECOND t:me;hu‘ _

READ A THIRD TIME AND FINALLY passed th: . day of September, 2022.

Mayor
Gail Degagne

Clerk
Jennistine Leblond



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHISHOLM

SCHEDULE “A” TO BY-LAW 2022-XX

(Insert application)




THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF CHISHOLM

SCHEDULE “B” TO BY-LAW 2022-XX

Licensing Fees

item Fee

Short Term Rental License (annual) $500.00

Mayor
Gail Degagne



puojgan sunsiuua aubeba( €D
a0 loAep

"paji usaq sey yoiym Jo Adoo payiped e ‘pepusuie se .xx-mwomam._->m o 0°g uonoeg ww_‘..m)nnm pejesIpul saouayo ayj o} uoisiroid Ajeusd 810N

00°0001$ G “papiIed JO $580X8 Ul [BJusy WIS1 HOUS E JO UONED0| SU) Je JUsA 6
00°00€$ LS }IS UO SUGIiEpoWwtioooe Buidasls Jayjo Jo sjua) J00pIng oSN 8
00°00€$ g'g uonos|j0o bulphosyebeqieb Jo) uoisinoid oN ]
00°00S$ €9 m::o:bm 10 mc__o__:m Kl0ssa20y Ue Ul |ejuay wia] Hoys e jo uonelado 9
00°005$ A Kuadoid suoAue uo |ejusy wis] HOYS SUO UBY) 8I0W B JO uoieiadQ G
00°005% LG >tmaos_ B} U0 pajedo| aq 0} S|DIUSA JO I3]iel | [euoljealday Jwisd ¥
00°005$ L'E ; 9SUBdIT PaYOAI YIM [Bjuay Wia] Hoys e ejessdQ 5
00°005$ [A> chmEQSUS asus0I] 8y} Jod se Aouednoado wnwixew ay} pasoxg Z
00°005$ L'e 9SUS2IT B JNOYIM [ejuay W] Hoys e sjesedp 1
aouayQ buluyag = ;
saul4 jos 10 Bupealn uoisinoid " Buipiopy wio4 poys way

_ s8UI JOS — Oy SBOUBYO [EIOUINI | | Hed

L XX-2Z0Z MVT- ;_m..oh. «O» IINAIHOS
IWTOHSIHD 40 dIHSNMOL FHL NI m._S.zmm.s_mm; Eo:m 40 3SN IHL 31VINO3Y ANV ISNIOIT OL MV1-Ag V ONI3S

XX..NNQN ‘'ON MVT-AG
WTOHSIHO u_O..n___._wZ>>O._. dH1 40 NOILVNOd¥NOD FHL




N oo Business
Current Official Plan Olgu\&cx += |

B1 RURAL

B1.1 PURPOSE

The purpose of the Rural designation is to:

a) permit uses which support the community;

b) protect the rural character of the Township and maintain those elements
which contribute to the open space character of the countryside;

c) prevent the intrusion of land uses which are incompatible with the rural
character and/or resource activities of the area;

d) encourage rural land uses and associated activities that contribute to the
economy of the Township; and,

e) ensure that the scale of development is compatible with the role and
function of the rural area.

B1.2 LOCATION

The Rural land use designation applies to the majority of land within the planning
area that is not otherwise placed in one of the other land use designations for this
Official Plan as shown on land use schedules.

B1.3 PERMITTED USES

a) agricultural uses;

b) single detached dwellings and internal accessory dwellings units;

c) garden suites in accordance with Section E1.2;

d) bed and breakfast establishments;

e) home occupations, home industries subject to the provisions of Section
B1.5.1 of this Plan and local Zoning By-laws;

f) veterinary clinics, abattoirs and uses which serve agri-business;

g) commercial dog kennels subject to Section B1.5.10 of this Plan;

h) passive recreational uses, such as walking trails and nature
interpretation centres on lands owned by a public authority;

i) small-scale accommodation facilities subject to Section B1.5.9 of this
Plan;

j) forestry and resource management uses;

k) uses related to recreation and tourism such as outfitting posts and ecotourism
uses,

) golf courses, subject to an amendment to the Zoning By-law;

m) small-scale public uses subject to an amendment to the Zoning By-law;
n) local institutional uses such as schools, church and cemeteries subject to
Sections B1.5.4 & 1.5.5 of this Plan;

o) commercial and industrial uses which serve the rural community and are
compatible in a rural environment subject to Section B1.5.6;

p) the extraction of stone, gravel, sand and other aggregates and
associated operations such as crushing, screening, washing and

aggregate storage subject to Section B1.6;

q) mineral exploration and mining activities authorized under the Mining Act
subject to Section B1.7; and,

r) wayside pits and quarries, portable asphalt plants and concrete plants
for specific road works undertaken by a public authority in the area.

B1.4 DEVELOPMENT POLICIES
B1.4.1 The Creation of New Lots for Rural Residential Purposes



In keeping with the rate of rural lot creation that has occurred historically in the
Township, this Plan has established a target of 15 new lots per calendar year.
However, this threshold may be adjusted without amendment to this Plan if it can
be demonstrated that average annual lot creation in the Rural designation over
the previous three calendar years falls below the annual target of 15 lots per
year. On this basis, future lot creation shall be guided by the following criteria:

a) a maximum of 4 new lots may be severed from an original Township lot
having a lot area of 40 hectares;

b) a maximum of 3 new lots may be severed from an original Township lot having a lot area of 20
hectares;

¢) a maximum of 2 new lots may be severed from an existing lot having a
lot area of at least 10 hectares;

d) a maximum of 1 new lot may be severed from an existing lot having a lot
area of at least 5 hectares;

e) the terms “original” and “existing” shall refer to a lot that existed in its
current configuration on August 21, 1978;

f) the severed and retained lands must maintain a minimum frontage on a
public road of 60 metres and a minimum lot area of 1 hectare;

g) the boundary of the severed lot complies with the minimum distance
required by the Minimum Distance Separation | Formulae;

h) the proposed lot(s) comply with the criteria set out in Section D4.2.1
(General Consent Policies) of this Plan;

i) the proposed lots(s) are appropriately designed, buffered and/or
separated from any industrial or other incompatible land use in
accordance with Provincial guidelines to prevent adverse effects from
odour, noise and other contaminants and to minimize risk to public health
and safety.



